TOWN OF STONY POINT
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS
Minutes of May 3, 2018



PRESENT:						ALSO PRESENT:
Mr. Anginoli						Dave McCartney, Attorney
Mr. Keegan						
Mr. Casscles 
Mr. Vasti (absent)
Mr. Lynch 
Mr. Strieter 

Chairman Wright 

Chairman Wright:  Good evening.  Welcome to the Stony Point Zoning Board of Appeals.  I call this meeting of May 3, 2018, to order.  Please rise for the Pledge of Allegiance.

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited and roll call taken.
We have three (3) items on the agenda and it looks like our first applicant is not here.  So what we will do we will go ahead and skip to the public hearing the request for Frohling Sign Company.
Request of Frohling Sign Company – App. #18-03

A variance from the requirements of Chapter 215, Article IX, Section 52-B-2 exceeds maximum square footage allowed, required 40 square feet, provided 243.28 square feet.  

A variance from the requirements of Chapter 215, Article B-3, exceeds vertical dimension allowed, required 2.5 feet, provided 5.99 feet, for a sign located at 22 Holt Drive, Stony Point, New York.

Section:  20.04        Block:  11      Lot:  2.2      Zone:   LI

I will take a motion to open the Public Hearing.

***MOTION:  Mr. Casscles made a motion to open the Public Hearing; seconded by Mr. Keegan.  All in favor; the motion was carried.

Chairman Wright:  Is there a representative from the company here?

	Dave Zigler – Atzl, Nasher & Zigler
	
Mr. Zigler:  I am representing Crossroads, the owner, and Pet Supplies, the applicant.  

Chairman Wright:  “The testimony you are about to give is truthful?”

Mr. Zigler:  Yes.

Chairman Wright:  Do you have a presentation you would like to show us?  

Mr. Zigler:  Yes.  Basically, as you just read there is a request for a variance of the height and the size of the sign for Pet Plus.  

	(presenting the audio)

This is Crossroads shopping center, this is Shop Rite, this is your Tractor Supply and this is Aldi’s and what Pet Supplies wants to do is take out three units.  So I’ve never represented anybody doing that in a shopping center where they are taking out three units.  In this case I would say it’s a second major within the shopping center.  If you compare that to the old Grand Union, now that’s Pasta Cucina is, that’s the really old, when that Grand Union left they cut that up into two spaces and that is two majors in that; that don’t equal this.  

The second Grand Union, which is where Aldi’s and Tractor Supply, there was a theater next to it, they took the theater out and the Grand Union expanded and then when that went out that was broken up into the two, which the second one is Tractor Supply.  Now they are a little bit bigger then what we are asking here.  

So what becomes the problem is they have a lot of frontage and they would like to put a lot large sign.  
In your Code, and it says right here, each unit, each user, each user it actually says is limited to 40 square foot and if it said each unit, in this case, you could look at this as they are taking five or you can say three because there is three doors, but just because they are taking more area in the shopping center doesn’t give them any more than a 40 foot which a half unit could take.  

So the request here is kind of based on the size of the store and to get the visual impact with the sign.  The sign, at the requesting, is two items.  The first one is, of course, the height because the height does affect the square foot.  So when we say its 240 square foot it is because the height is almost 5 foot/6 foot.  

You can see that sign from the intersection when the leaves are off here.  But, when the leaves are up you wouldn’t be able to see the sign.  

So when I made this presentation to the Board very quickly, the Chairman gave me some “homework” to do and so what I did (handing out papers) I was lucky enough to represent CVS, Provident Bank, Commerce Bank, and a few others, but we didn’t represent Tractor Supply.  The Tractor Supply sign is 5 foot high and they received a variance from this Board.  The ones I have here are still in.  I didn’t do this on Provident because Provident changed and I didn’t think that was fair and I didn’t use Commerce Bank because that, of course, has changed to TD Bank.  So I know they got variances, but I really didn’t use them as an example.  

So I just rolled this for you, the front page is CVS and as you see they have a big façade sign on the front of CVS and they also have large letters.  The letters that say CVS on the left side are over 3 foot high; just the letters.  The signage here is 6 foot high.  So the request in height has already been set as an example within the Town of Stony Point.  

On the second page you will see Shop Rite and that’s just letters; that’s not the box, that’s just the letters of Shop Rite and they are 7 foot high.  That’s the ones I think to the left when you look at the store and then they have their insignia which I believe is to the right of the door.  That’s basically 10 foot in diameter.  

Now both of these signs; CVS and the rest of them I mentioned, all had to come in for variances because they didn’t meet the Code in height.  

If you looked at Shop Rite, they have several things like pharmacy, deli, and from the home…the next three pages show that and it shows the lettering of the bakery and everything at 24 inches.  

So we have signs out there with just lettering that exceed the height that we are requesting and we have signs out there with the box like Tractor Supply which is almost equal.  

The one item that I didn’t take a picture of and received a variance, which is even larger than this, is Hudson Bay Storage that’s on the water tank and I did receive a variance to be put on and I don’t know how big it was and I wasn’t going to go up there and measure it (everyone laughing) but it is big.  

The second thing we did is we just bought up information that Pet Supplies gave us and one of the questions was how big are the letters.  The letters themselves here are 42 inches in height.  You can see they are all going across equal and then the smaller one – grooming dog, wash, that is about 18 inches in height.  Left to right they vary, but I would say they are 2 foot.  So as far as the size of the letters, they might be a little bit bigger than most, but they are in script I would say, so you know you make them all the same size.  

But, the request for the 6 foot actually goes, that showed over here in “e” (pointing at screen) is from the top of the sign to the bottom.  So it’s not the letters.  I just wanted to show that it’s not really the letters that are that high it’s the entire sign.  And that’s where Tractor Supply comes in; their entire sign is a little over 5 foot.  

The other ones that I was showing to you have no box to them.  They are just the letters and the letters exceed the height that we are requesting.  

So if this happens, it’s not going to create any kind of hardship or safety factor or change really any zoning or lead the way to changing something that would be the first one to benefit from a variance.  This has been done before and every time you’ve done it you’ve done it because it was good design and it wasn’t hindering anybody.  And why I say that is because let’s say if this was next to house, or a residence, or a school, or something you might say that kind of looks silly, but in real life this is down by itself in a hole and it’s been open for eight years, I think, eight years and two of these units have never been rented.  So just because of that fact and the fact that you might see it from 9W the request from Pet Supplies is to have a sign that big.  

Any questions?  

Mr. Anginoli:  In this packet that I have here, there is an alternate picture, what is the purpose of submitting the alternate?

Mr. Zigler:  It’s very unusual and I did it a little bit on our own because they need to have a conclusion to this so they can get a sign and if this 42 really cranks you up we want to be able to say that we would go to the 36.  We would hope that that would not happen, but we didn’t want to leave here and have you redirect us to come back again because it would have been another two weeks and so on.  So we kind of threw that alternate out there and I sent that in a week ago before I actually did some of this “homework” to see how many signs were exceeded 42 inches.  So we are just trying to get you happy so we can get the variance and get the show on the road.  So I did put the alternate in.

Mr. Casscles:  CVS has two signs, right?

Mr. Zigler:  CVS has actually three because they considered that a corner.  They have one that faces 9W and one that faces Filors.  

Mr. Zigler:  If you are on a corner, you are allowed to have twice as much.  Like the unit that is on the corner (pointing at the screen) here that is still empty, that would be considered a corner unit and it be able to have a sign facing 9W and facing Holt Drive.  So it would double what’s allowed, but it would still be one unit.

Mr. Zigler:  The oddity that is here - it’s a major kind of in the middle of the site.  It’s not at the corner…because usually you have a major and a second major at either end or something.

Chairman Wright:  So it was 60 inches from the top of one to the bottom of the other…how high is the fascia?  Do you have to extend it beyond the initial fascia?  

Mr. Zigler:  A little bit and it actually goes above the fascia which is right there (pointing at screen) so I would say half, twice the height, but it doesn’t exceed the back drop fascia.  That tan goes all the way through, so the sign…visually looking up, it would be the same size.  

Mr. Casscles:  The dark colored one is the roof line?

Mr. Zigler:  Yes.  It is set back from the façade.

Mr. Casscles:  So it wouldn’t be extend above the roof line.

Mr. Zigler:  No.  

Mr. Keegan:  Dave, you said this sign is larger than the Tractor sign?

Mr. Zigler:  Yes, the Tractor sign was 5 foot from top to bottom.  This, we will say, is 6 foot.

Mr. Keegan:  How many stores that the Tractor has 2 stores, or 3 stores, or 4 stores?

Mr. Zigler:  No, they actually took half of the old Grand Union.  Because remember when the theater went out the Grand Union expanded into the theater so the Grand Union wasn’t a big box like you would think it was…Shop Rite.  It ended being a Stop n Shop, right.  

Mr. Keegan:  And the other question…I’m trying to get it into my mind when you say the corner store/facility are you saying that Shop Rite could have something facing Holt Drive?

Mr. Zigler:  No.  The other end of the street (inaudible – too many people talking) Like a Provident Bank is on the corner, so they can have one in the front and one the side.  CVS was like that and Walgreen’s was like that.  They let it work on Walgreen’s, but if we were talking about this unit it would double because you would be allowed to put something on the Holt side and something on the parking lot side because it faced 9W.  So in this case, they kind of get the short end because it doesn’t say unit it says user.  If it said unit, Bill could interpret that to be 120 square foot because it is 3 and they could actually split them; it could have been 5.  So it could of actually been 200 square foot, but the fact is it says user so it’s 40 square foot.

Chairman Wright:  Does the owner of the building have any concerns?  Have they raised any issues…any kinds of…

Mr. Zigler:  You want to say something?  Come up to the microphone.

Chairman Wright:  If you can just give us your name please.

	Gary Lisa – representing Crossroads

Chairman Wright:  “The testimony you are about to give is truthful?”

Mr. Lisa:  Yes.

Chairman Wright:  And you represent the owner?

Mr. Lisa:  Yes.  

Chairman Wright:  Do you have any concerns about this, or…?

Mr. Lisa:  No, not at all.  We want it and it is good for the community; too, not to see….a lot of people…everybody goes to the Shop Rite, not everybody, but people go the Shop Rite and you see the empty stores.  It is kind of…you know.  It would be nicer to see it.

Chairman Wright:  Any other questions?  

Mr. Zigler:  We have a representative here from Pet Supplies and he would like to say something.

	Joseph Hochendoner – from Pets Supplies, Plus

Chairman Wright:  “The testimony you are about to give is truthful?”

Mr. Hochendoner:  Yes.  I appreciate you hearing our variance tonight.    So I just wanted to come here in case you guys have any questions for me, I would be happy to answer them.  But, they did a very good job presenting us and for what we are looking at here.  A majority of our signs are typical 42 inch signs.  So we have some concerns to with just the visibility with the trees in the front and how you navigate into the site.  So its…we want to make sure that our neighbors have a good presence of where we are at within the center and when they are entering the center that they can see us.  So we are a little bit concerned about that with how small the sign is based on the Code.  We just want to make sure that we have good representation on that.  So if there is any questions for me I would glad to answer them.

Mr. Casscles:  Is this sign going to be illuminated?  

Mr. Hochendoner:  Yes.

Mr. Casscles:  What hours?

Mr. Hochendoner:  Usually…it sort of depends.  I don’t know if there is a mall standard.   Usually it can be 10, 11.  It sort of depends on whatever restrictions there are either by the city or by the landlord.  

Mr. Keegan:  What are the hours of normal operation?

Mr. Hochendoner:  9 to 9…Monday through Saturday and 10-6 on Sunday.

Mr. Keegan:  You expect to have it illuminated beyond those hours?

Mr. Hochendoner:  Usually it goes to about 10 or 11.  Those are usually the typical hours beyond the time frame, but again it is usually dependent on either the city ordinance or if there is a restriction by the landlord, but usually it is 10 or 11.  

Chairman Wright:  Anybody else from the community have any input?

	(no response)

Chairman Wright:  Any questions from the Board?

	(no response)

Chairman Wright:  Mr. Zigler, you are done then?

Mr. Zigler:  Yes, I am.

***MOTION:  Mr. Keegan made a motion to close the Public Hearing; seconded by Mr. Lynch.  All in favor; the motion was carried.

Chairman Wright:  The next item on the agenda is a new application the request of Timothy Schnittker.

Request of Timothy Schnittker – App. #18-04

A variance from the requirements of:

1. Chapter 215, Article XIV, Section 94D.1-c – Less than required front setback, required 30 feet, provided 20 feet (corner lot);
2. Chapter 215, Article XIV, Section 94D.1-c – Less than required front setback, required 30 feet, provided 20 feet (corner lot);
3. Chapter 215, Article XIV, Section 94D.1-c – Less than required rear setback, required 30 feet, provided 18.5 feet; and
4. Chapter 215, Article XIV, Section 94D.1-e – Exceeds allowable height, maximum height 25 feet, provided 42 feet

for a one-family residence located at 74 Beach Road, Stony Point, New York.

Section:  15.20          Block:  1          Lot:  11.1          Zone:  WP

Chairman Wright:  Is the applicant or a representative of the applicant here?  Could you just identify yourself and where you live?

	Timothy Schnittker
	64 Beach Road
	Stony Point, New York

Chairman Wright:  “Is the testimony you are about to give is truthful?”

Mr. Schnittker:  Yes.

Chairman Wright:  So this kind of a preliminary.  We will have a Public Hearing.  The attempt here is just to kind of make sure we have everything we think we need so that the Public Hearing goes on without having to get additional detail.  So we are going to ask you a bunch of questions tonight and we will probably ask you exactly the same questions when we have the Public Hearing.  

You can just give us a brief overview of what you are looking to do with the property and what the project is.  

Mr. Schnittker:  Well I reside at 64 Beach Road.  Which is on an easement and there is a lot right next to me that is 74 Beach Road which is where we are applying for the variances and we’ve enhanced the properties next to us and we want to enhance the property next to us.  It seems like the house belongs there.  We have built two (2) houses there that conform to the height variances from…that conforms to 

the height variances because of the flood plains and we want to build another one there and it seems as though…it just seems to be the right thing to do.  So that is what we want to do and it just…our houses would go because of Hurricane Sandy and but it seems like the other house should be done.  So that is where we are coming from and that is all.

Chairman Wright:  Any questions?

Mr. Anginoli:  Yes, I would like to get a little information about this one that issued which is the height requirement – the maximum is 25 feet and you are proposing 42 feet.  Could you explain to me…?

Mr. Schnittker:  The FEMA is 11 feet to start with.  So FEMA wants us to build houses at 11 feet and that is why I built my house at 64 Beach Road.  So you are starting at 11 feet and then you are doing a two-story house; not out of the box, but like two-story plus 11 feet comes above that.  That is pretty much.  No one is going to buy a house that doesn’t meet FEMA because their insurance would be astronomical. So, we want to build a house that meets FEMA requirements which is what mine and my neighbor does.  That is the height requirement.  That is why.

Mr. Keegan:  The house that you live in what is the height of that house?

Mr. Schnittker:  11 feet plus two-stories.

Mr. Keegan:  How big is the two-stories?

Mr. Schnittker:  It is 11…10 and 10. 

Mr. Keegan:  So that is 31.

Mr. Schnittker:  31 plus the roof line.  So you are above that.  Even if you do it like a slight pitch roof…we are not looking to do like a giant pitch you are looking at…the house on the plan was 11 feet for FEMA, because that is the requirement, 8 foot ceilings on the first, 8 foot ceilings on the second, plus the roof line.  So you are talking about a two-story house with normal ceiling height; plus the roof plan.  So it is nothing like out of the box.  I’m just trying to build a house that people would want and that is it.  

Chairman Wright:  What would be the finished square footage of the new house?

Mr. Schnittker:  Its only 2,000 square feet.  

Mr. Keegan:  One more question – in terms of the lot area…the required lot area I see is 15,000 square feet and you are offering 7,385; less than half.  

Mr. Schnittker:  Yes, it is small lot.  Nothing different then mine.  

Mr. Keegan:  And you said this lot is right next to your house.  

Mr. Schnittker:  My backyard.  

Mr. Keegan:  Okay, so in that sense what we are doing is putting two (2) houses on a single lot.  Am I right about…or am I getting the wrong impression?  

Mr. Schnittker:  I think…

Mr. Keegan:  You had initially 15,000 or close to it and you put a house on that.  

Mr. Schnittker:  I was lucky enough to be grandfathered from Hurricane Sandy and both the houses that are next to…we are grandfathered from Hurricane Sandy.  This house isn’t grandfathered from Hurricane Sandy and that is why we are here.  But, yet I believe that it is conducive to the area because it fits…when it fits - #2 it looks right, #3 I don’t think anybody is going to complain about it because it enhances the shoreline and that is pretty much what we are all about is enhancing the shoreline a little bit…it’s like one (1) lot; it’s like one (1) house…a little bit of the time…it’s Stony Point.  Enhancing the shore line of Stony Point and at the boatyard there is only one (1) person that is going to buy that house and that is the person who wants to be by the boatyard and have a little bit of view of the Hudson and that is what we are all about.  The variance we want is like…I really don’t think when we have the meeting that anybody on Beach Road is going to complain about it.  

Chairman Wright:  Anymore questions for Mr. Schnittker?

Mr. Strieter:  It is facing north; the front of the house, right?

Mr. Schnittker:  Excuse me.

Mr. Strieter:  Is the front of the house facing north, right?

Mr. Schnittker:  Yeah.  We’ve turned the house.  That’s why we need so many variances because…we want it to face the east and south and have a walk between my house and 64 and 68 Beach and the decks face that way.  But, we gave it a good look towards the road also.  So it’s not ugly.  

Chairman Wright:  Any questions?

	(no response)

Chairman Wright:  I’ll take a motion to put it on the agenda.  

***MOTION:  Mr. Anginoli made a motion to place Application #18-04 on the June 7, 2018, agenda for a Public Hearing; seconded by Mr. Lynch.  All in favor; the motion was carried.

Chairman Wright:  So the site visit will be May 20, 2018.  We will probably be there between 8:15 and 9:00.  You can be there if you would like.

Mr. Schnittker:  Absolutely.

Chairman Wright:  If we are not there by 9:00, people just got stuck so don’t wait for us past 9:00. 

Chairman Wright:  I will take a motion to accept the meeting minutes of April 5, 2018.

***MOTION:  Mr. Anginoli made a motion to accept the minutes of April 5, 2018; seconded by Mr. Casscles.  All in favor; the motion was carried.

Chairman Wright:  I would like to take a motion to go into Executive Session.

***MOTION:  Mr. Anginoli made a motion at 7:29 PM, to go into Executive Session; pending litigation; seconded by Mr. Casscles.  All in favor; the motion was carried. 

***MOTION:  Chairman Wright made a motion at 8:21 PM, to reconvene to regular Zoning Board of Appeals; seconded by Mr. Anginoli.  All in favor; the motion was a carried.

***MOTION:  Chairman Wright made a motion to adjourn the meeting of May 3, 2018; seconded by Mr. Anginoli.  All in favor; the motion was carried.

						Respectfully submitted,

						Kathleen Kivlehan
						Secretary
						Zoning Board of Appeals
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